London Borough of Hounslow

INVITATION TO TENDER

DN646202 - Engagement Platform for the London Borough of Hounslow

Bids submitted after the stated closing date and time *will not* be considered.

Before proceeding to complete the SQ and ITT, Suppliers must confirm they fulfil the pre-requisites listed below. If you declare you meet all 3 pre-requisites, you will need to provide evidence if invited to demonstrate your product.

1	Please confirm that your platform will give the Council the autonomy to	
	design, create, edit, access, and publish our own consultations and engagement.	

2	Please confirm your se	rvers and data centres are UK based.
---	------------------------	--------------------------------------

3 Please evidence that you meet the Cyber Essential Plus requirements.

I declare the company can fulfil the pre-requisites [\checkmark] tick box where applicable

If you cannot fulfil the pre-requisites, you have not Passed the first criteria for this procurement exercise and therefore your SQ if submitted will not be considered or evaluated.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION:	
1 INTRODUCTION	3
2 IMPORTANT NOTICES	7
3 TIMETABLE AND PROCESS1	6
4 SPECIFICATION	21
5 SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS	22
6 EVALUATION	24
7 BID CHECKLIST	29
Appendix 1 : Specification	30
Appendix 2 : Contract	31
Appendix 3 : Certificates	32
Appendix 4 : Contractual Undertaking	35
Appendix 5 : SQ Explanatory Document	36
Appendix 6 : SQ4	10
Appendix 7 : Award Criteria5	57
Appendix 8 : Council Requirements and Supplier Responses5	59
Appendix 9 : Financial Submissions6	51
Appendix 11: Climate Commitment Charter: Partnering with our Suppliers to reduce	
our carbon impacts6	52

	Invitation to Tender No: DN646202	London Borough of Hounslow
Tender for:	Engagement Portal for the London Borough of Hounslow	Due for return by 12:00 Noon on:
Period of Contract:	36 months 2 x 12-month extensions	13th January 2023 Bids submitted after the stated closing date and time <u>may not</u> be considered.

1 INTRODUCTION

General

- 1.1 The Procurement is being run under the Open procedure, which is a formal bidding procedure, under which the contract is advertised and all interested organisations/consortium can bid. This ITT provides further details of the proposal and process for submitting Bids.
- 1.2 The following approach will be taken to the contract arrangements:
 - 1.2.1 **Services/Goods required by the Authority**: the Authority will enter into the Contract with the successful Bidder.

Communications / Contact

- 1.3 The Authority is using the London Tenders Portal for the Procurement Process: londontenders.org ("the Procurement Portal").
- 1.4 Bidders must not approach any member of the Authority in relation to the Procurement or the Procurement Process, other than by using the messaging facility on the Procurement Portal.
- 1.5 Any technical questions relating to the use of the Procurement Portal website should be addressed by email to: procurement@hounslow.gov.uk, with the tender reference number quoted in the subject. This is only the technical support line and any ITT queries should be directed to the relevant procurement team running the contract through the messaging function of the Procurement Portal.

Open Procedure

1.6 This ITT has been developed to achieve the selection of a provider to deliver the Procurement.

- 1.7 The Authority is using the Open procedure. Any interested organisation/consortium may submit a Bid in response to this ITT.
- 1.8 All Bidders are required to complete this ITT document in order to submit their completed Bid. Bids must comprise both the Selection Questionnaire ("SQ") and ITT response documents (see Appendices to this ITT). All aspects of this ITT should be completed in full and submitted as part of a Bid.
- 1.9 The Authority will evaluate Bidders' responses to the selection questions in the SQ (Appendix 6: SQ) before evaluating the remainder of the Bid. All Bidders meeting the selection criteria (set out in the SQ Explanatory Document (Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document) will proceed to the tender evaluation stage and will have the remainder of their Bids evaluated. Bidders which do not meet the selection criteria, will not proceed to the tender evaluation stage.
- 1.10 During the open procedure, negotiations between the Authority and Bidders on fundamental aspects of their offer, such as price, are not permissible.
- 1.11 The purpose of this document is to describe the Procurement Process and to provide further information about the Procurement.
- 1.12 All documents and Bids will be prepared in the English language. The Procurement Process and all subsequent contracts will be subject to English law and the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.
- 1.13 The ITT aims to:
 - provide information to Bidders on the Procurement and the opportunities available;
 - set out clearly the Authority's requirements;
 - provide information on the Authority's approach to the open procedure process;
 - set out the deliverables required from Bidders; and
 - set out the evaluation criteria and weightings that the Authority will use to assess Bids.
- 1.14 Details of the overall timetable and submission deadlines and other key dates are outlined in **Section 3 (Timetable and Process)** below.
- 1.15 The questions that Bidders are required to answer in the ITT are set out in <u>Appendix 8: Council Requirements and Supplier Responses</u> and **Appendix 9: Financial Submissions** to this document.
- 1.16 Bidders should note that there will be no negotiations permitted on the Contract terms (**Appendix 2**) prior to or after the Bid submissions deadline date. Bidders are deemed to accept the Contract terms as set out in this ITT and the Authority reserves the right to reject a Bid which seeks to vary or qualify the terms of the Contract (in a manner not permitted in this ITT).
- 1.17 Bids should be final and complete in meeting the Authority's requirements. Please refer to the submission instructions in **Section 5 (Submission Instructions)** and the checklist contained in **Section 0 (Bid Checklist)**.

- 1.18 However, the Authority may request Bidders to clarify aspects of their Bids where the Authority considers it appropriate to do so.
- 1.19 Following the submission of Bids, the Authority expects to undertake an evaluation process to identify which Bid is the most economically advantageous tender (MEAT) and will be put forward for consideration to be awarded the Contract.
- 1.20 The Authority reserves the right to vary the procedure as described in any of the Procurement Documents including in the FTS Notice and the ITT. Reasons for this may include, but are not limited to, supporting continued competition, avoiding unnecessary bidding costs and adhering to subsequent technical or legal guidance.

Definitions

1.21 In this ITT, the following definitions shall apply:

Definitions	
Advisers	Means all professional advisers of the Authority involved in the Procurement Process
Authority	Means London Borough of Hounslow or its duly authorised officers
Bid	Means each of the written proposals submitted by a Bidder as part of this Procurement Process at any stage of the Procurement Process. A Bid includes the SQ and ITT responses.
Bidder(s)	Means individuals and/or Organisations who are interested in tendering for the Procurement
Confidential Information	Means all information marked as confidential. Does not apply to any information not marked in this way.
Consortium	Means either an entity which is to be formed by a group of Organisations or a group of Organisations acting jointly as the Bidder
Consortium Member	Means where the Bidder is a Consortium, any individual economic operator forming part of that Consortium
Contract	Means the agreement between the Authority and the Supplier for the provision of Goods & Services being the subject of this Procurement Process, including all documents to which reference may properly be made in order to ascertain the rights and obligations of the parties
Contract Price	Means the price referred to in the Contract as payable by the Authority, together with any additions or deductions, agreed in writing under the Contract

ІТТ	Means Invitation to Tender
MEAT	Means Most Economically Advantageous Tender as defined within the EU Procurement Directive (2014/24/EU), which can be either the lowest price tender, or a tender assessed on the basis of a mix of price and quality criteria
Organisation	Means a sole trader, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, co-operative or company and any analogous entity established inside or outside the UK
Procurement	Means the Engagement Platform for the London Borough of Hounslow
Procurement Documents	Means any document issued by the Authority as part of this Procurement Process
Procurement Portal	Means www.londontenders.org
Procurement Process	Means the procedure set out in this ITT by which the Procurement will be procured
SQ	Means the Selection Questionnaire
SQ Explanatory Document	Means the Selection Questionnaire Explanatory Document at Appendix 5
Supplier	Means the person, firm or company responsible for carrying out the Contract and shall include the Supplier's successors and permitted assignees

2 IMPORTANT NOTICES

General

- 2.1 This ITT has been prepared by the Authority and is for use by those interested in bidding for the Procurement, their professional advisers, and other parties essential to preparing a Bid for the Procurement and for no other purpose.
- 2.2 You are deemed to fully understand the process that the Authority is required to follow under relevant UK legislation, particularly in relation to public procurement rules.
- 2.3 Bidders' attention is drawn to the further notices set out in this **Section 2** (**Important Notices**) which form part of the conditions of participation in this Procurement Process and to **Section 5** (**Submission Instructions**) which details how to submit Bids.

Confidentiality

- 2.4 The Procurement Process may involve the Authority providing Confidential Information to the Bidders. The Bidders shall at all times:
 - 2.4.1 treat all Confidential Information as confidential;
 - 2.4.2 not disclose, copy, reproduce, distribute or pass the Confidential Information to any other person at any time;
 - 2.4.3 not use the Confidential Information for any purpose other than for the purposes of making (or deciding whether to make) a Bid in relation to the Procurement; and
 - 2.4.4 comply with the provisions of paragraph 2.13 below (which contains restrictions on publicity activity within any section of the media or similar).
- 2.5 Bidders shall procure that, if it is a Consortium, each Consortium Member who receives any of the Confidential Information is made aware of, and complies with, the confidentiality obligations in this Section 2.
- 2.6 Bidders may disclose, distribute or pass the Confidential Information to another person (including, but not limited to, for example, employees, consultants, sub-contractors or advisers, the Bidder's insurers or the Bidder's funders) if either:
 - 2.6.1 this is done for the sole purpose of enabling a Bid to be made and the person receiving the Confidential Information undertakes in writing to keep the Information confidential on the same terms as set out in this ITT; or
 - 2.6.2 the Bidder obtains the prior written consent of the Authority in relation to such disclosure, distribution or passing of the Information
- 2.7 The Authority may disclose detailed information relating to Bids to the Authority's members, directors, officers, employees, agents or advisers and they may make the

key Bid documents available for private inspection by the Authority's members, directors, officers, employees, agents or advisers.

- 2.8 The Procurement Process may also involve Bidders providing Bidder's Confidential Information to the Authority. The Authority reserves the right to disseminate Bidder's Confidential Information to all Bidders whether during the Bid process, at debrief stage or after the Contract has been entered into.
- 2.9 The Authority will act reasonably as regards the protection of Bidder's Confidential Information, subject to the Authority's duties under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (see 2.44 below) and any other associated transparency duties.

Conflicts

2.10 The Authority requires all actual or potential conflicts of interest to be declared and resolved to the Authority's satisfaction prior to the delivery of a Bid. Failure to declare such conflicts (including new conflicts which may arise during the Procurement Process) and/or failure to address such conflicts to the reasonable satisfaction of the Authority could result in a Bidder being disqualified at the sole discretion of the Authority.

Canvassing and non-collusion

- 2.11 The Authority reserves the right to disqualify (without prejudice to any other civil remedies available to the Authority and without prejudice to any criminal liability which such conduct by a Bidder or Consortium Member (as the case may be) may attract) any Bidder or Consortium Member (or its directors or any other person who has powers of representation, decision or control of the Bidder or Consortium Member), who, in connection with this ITT:
 - 2.11.1 offers any inducement, fee or reward to any member or officer of the Authority or any person acting as an adviser for the Authority in connection with this ITT;
 - 2.11.2 does anything which would constitute an offence within the meaning of section 1(2) of the Public Bodies Corrupt Practices Act 1889 or section 1 of the Prevention of Corruption Act 1906, where the offence relates to active corruption;
 - 2.11.3 does anything which would constitute the offence of bribery, where the offence relates to active corruption;
 - 2.11.4 does anything which would constitute bribery within the meaning of section 1 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010;
 - 2.11.5 canvasses any member or officer of the Authority or any person acting as an adviser for the Authority in connection with this ITT;
 - 2.11.6 contacts any officer of the Authority prior to the Contract being entered into about any aspect of the ITT in a manner not permitted by this ITT (including without limitation contact for the purposes of discussing the possible transfer to the employment of the Bidder of such officer);

- 2.11.7 fixes or adjusts the amount of its Bid by or in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other Bidder or Consortium Member of any other Bidder (other than its own Consortium Members or supply chain);
- 2.11.8 enters into any agreement or arrangement with any other Bidder (or Consortium Member of any other Bidder) to the effect that it shall refrain from making a Bid or as to the amount of any Bid to be submitted;
- 2.11.9 causes or induces any person to enter such agreement as is mentioned in either paragraph 2.11.7 or 2.11.8 or to inform the Bidder (or a Consortium Member of the Bidder) of the amount or approximate amount of any rival Bid;
- 2.11.10 canvasses any person connected with this ITT who is not one of its own Consortium Members or one of its own team;
- 2.11.11 offers or agrees to pay or give or does pay or give any sum of money, inducement or valuable consideration directly or indirectly to any person for doing or having done or causing or having caused to be done in relation to any other Bid (or proposed Bid) any act or omission;
- 2.11.12 communicates to any person other than the Authority the amount or approximate amount of his proposed Bid (except where such disclosure is made in confidence in order to obtain quotations necessary for the preparation of a Bid);
- 2.11.13 enters into any agreement with any other Bidder (or a Consortium Member of any other Bidder) aimed at distorting the outcome of the competition;
- 2.11.14 undertakes to unduly influence the decision-making process of the Authority; or
- 2.11.15 undertakes to obtain confidential information that could confer upon it an undue advantage in the award of the Contract.
- 2.12 Bidders will be required to complete and submit certificates of non-collusion and non-canvassing.

Publicity

2.13 Bidders shall not undertake (or permit to be undertaken) at any time, whether at this stage or after the Contract has been entered into, any publicity activity with any section of the media in relation to the Procurement other than with the prior written agreement of the Authority. Such agreement shall extend to the content of any publicity. In this paragraph the word "media" includes (but without limitation) radio, television, newspapers, trade and specialist press, the internet and email accessible by the public at large and the representatives of such media.

Liability of the Authority and its Advisers

- 2.14 In the Procurement Documents, "the Authority" includes all or any of the Authority and its members, officers and Advisers, and the directors, officers, members, partners, employees, other staff, agents or advisers of any such body or person.
- 2.15 The Procurement Documents have been prepared by and on behalf of the Authority for the purposes of:
 - 2.15.1 providing an application procedure for individuals or Organisations interested in submitting a Bid for the Procurement; and
 - 2.15.2 to assist persons interested in submitting a Bid for the Procurement in making their own evaluation of the potential opportunity.
- 2.16 The Procurement Documents are intended only to provide a background explanation of the Procurement and are not intended to form the basis of any decision on whether to enter into any contractual relationship with the Authority. The Procurement Documents do not purport to have been independently verified. The Procurement Documents should not be relied on as an investment recommendation of the Procurement made by the Authority to Bidders.
- 2.17 The Authority and its Advisers:
 - 2.17.1 do not make any representation or warranty (express or implied) as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the Procurement Documents provided. Any persons considering entering into a contractual relationship with the Authority should make their own investigations and independent assessment of the Authority and its requirements for this Procurement and should seek their own professional technical, financial and legal advice; and
 - 2.17.2 exclude all liability for any loss or damage whether caused by contract, tort (including negligence), misrepresentation or otherwise (other than in respect of fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation or personal injury or death) in relation to the Procurement Documents and/or arising as a result of reliance on the information in the Procurement Documents or any subsequent information made available to Bidders. Any and all liability is expressly excluded to the maximum extent permissible by law.
- 2.18 Only the express terms of any written contract relating to the Procurement (as and when it is entered into) shall have any contractual effect in connection with this Procurement Process.
- 2.19 The publication of the Procurement Documents in no way commits the Authority to award any contract to deliver the Procurement. The Authority reserves the right to vary or change all or any part of the procedures for the Procurement Process at any time or not to proceed with the Procurement for any reason.
- 2.20 For the purposes of the Procurement and the Procurement Process, all Advisers referred to in this document are acting exclusively as the advisers to the Authority

and will not be responsible or owe any duty of care to anyone other than the Authority.

Provision of further information from Bidders prior to making a Bid

2.21 The Authority is relying on the information provided by Bidders during the Procurement Process (including but not limited to Bids). If, at any time during this Procurement Process there are any material changes to that information, the Bidder must advise the Authority as soon as practicable (even if this is prior to the submission of a Bid). Upon receipt of such information, the Authority shall be entitled to revisit the selection and/or evaluation of the Bidder and exclude the Bidder if necessary, as a result of that process.

Procurement Process and costs

- 2.22 The Authority reserves the right at any time:
 - 2.22.1 to require a Bidder and/or its Consortium Members to clarify their Bid(s) in writing and/or provide additional information (failure to respond adequately may result in a Bidder not being successful); and/or
 - 2.22.2 to amend the terms and conditions of the Procurement Process;
 - 2.22.3 not to consider Bids other than those specified;
 - 2.22.4 to issue amendments or modifications to the ITT;
 - 2.22.5 to alter the timetable to contract award;
 - 2.22.6 to cancel or withdraw from the Procurement Process at any stage; and
 - 2.22.7 not to award a contract.
- 2.23 All Bidders are solely responsible for their costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and submission of Bids and participation in this and all future stages of this Procurement Process. Under no circumstances will the Authority be liable for any costs or expenses incurred by Bidders or any of a Bidder's supply chain, partners or advisers in this Procurement Process. This is the case even where the Authority abandons the Procurement Process for any reason.
- 2.24 Whilst reserving the right to request information at any time throughout the Procurement Process, the Authority may enable the Bidder to self-certify that there are no mandatory/ discretionary grounds for excluding their organisation. When requesting evidence that the Bidder can meet the specified requirements (such as the questions in section 6 of the SQ relating to Technical and Professional Ability) the Authority may choose to obtain such evidence after the final Bid evaluation decision (i.e. from the successful Bidder only).
- 2.25 the Authority reserves the right to provide information about the successful Bid(s) to unsuccessful Bidders as part of debriefing obligations arising in the conduct of the competition in accordance with Regulation 55 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and during the standstill period in accordance with Regulation 86 and 87 of

the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (including but not limited to the financial or price score of the successful Bid).

2.26 The Authority reserves the right to publish information on the Procurement Portal and/or Contracts Finder in accordance with Regulation 108 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (when applicable) and any relevant guidance concerning any contract awarded (including but not limited to the value of any contract awarded).

Abnormally low Bids:

2.27 Where the Authority receives a Bid which is abnormally low, it will require the Bidder to explain in writing the price or cost proposed in the Bid. the Authority will assess the information provided by the Bidder and may reject the Bid where the evidence supplied does not satisfactorily account for the low level of price or costs proposed.

Rejection of Bids

- 2.28 The Authority will reject or disqualify a Bidder and/or any of its Consortium Members at any time during the Procurement Process where a Bid is submitted late.
- 2.29 the Authority reserves the right to reject or disqualify a Bidder and/or any of its Consortium Members at any time during the Procurement Process where:
 - 2.29.1 a Bid is completed incorrectly, is materially incomplete or fails to meet the Authority's submission requirements which have been notified to the relevant Bidder;
 - 2.29.2 a Bidder provides inaccurate information regarding a subcontractor who is to play a significant role in delivering key requirements;
 - 2.29.3 the Bidder and/or any of its Consortium Members are unable to satisfy the terms of Article 57 of Directive 2014/24/EU and/or Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 at any stage during the Bid process;
 - 2.29.4 the Bidder and/or its Consortium Members are guilty of material misrepresentation in the Procurement Process (including but not limited to the SQ selection process of the competition);
 - 2.29.5 the Bidder and/or its Consortium Members contravene any of the terms and conditions of this ITT;
 - 2.29.6 there is a change in identity, control, financial standing or other factor impacting on the selection and/or evaluation process affecting the Bidder and/or its Consortium Members; or
 - 2.29.7 Bids or offers by Bidders are made subject to additional or alternative conditions.
- 2.30 All information conveyed within a Bid will be relied upon as being true and accurate and will form part of the Contract. If any of the information given within a Bid is subsequently identified as being inaccurate, the Authority may exclude that Bidder

from further consideration pre contract award. In the event of such an eventuality post contract award, the Authority reserves the right to terminate the Contract.

- 2.31 The disqualification of a Bidder will not prejudice any other civil remedy available to the Authority and will not prejudice any criminal liability that such conduct by a Bidder may attract.
- 2.32 The Authority reserves the right to require Bidders at any moment during the Procurement Process to submit all or any of the supporting documents (or to supplement or clarify certificates received) where it is necessary to ensure the proper conduct of the Procurement Process for the purposes of:
 - 2.32.1 establishing the absence of grounds for exclusions under Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015; and/or
 - 2.32.2 establishing whether the Bidder meets (or continues to meet) the relevant SQ selection criteria relating to suitability to pursue a professional activity (where appropriate); economic and financial standing; and/or technical and professional ability; and/or
 - 2.32.3 establishing whether the Bidder fulfils (or continues to fulfil) the rules and criteria for participating in the competition.
- 2.33 Furthermore, before awarding the contract, the Authority reserves the right to require the successful Bidder to submit up-to-date supporting documents (or to supplement or clarify certificates received) for the purposes of:
 - 2.33.1 establishing the absence of grounds for exclusions under Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015; and/or
 - 2.33.2 establishing the continued fulfilment of the selection criteria and requirements (including where relevant the continued possession or attainment of quality assurance standards and environmental management standards (or evidence of their equivalents)).

Changes to Consortia

- 2.34 The Consortium Members of any Bidder and the principal relationships between Consortium Members may not be changed in relation to this Procurement Process unless the Authority's prior consent has been given, and subject to:
 - 2.34.1 any replacement Consortium Member being satisfactorily selected by the Authority; and
 - 2.34.2 any other condition which the Authority may specify having been met.
- 2.35 The Authority reserves the right, at its absolute discretion, to refuse to allow any change in the Consortium Members of any Bidder and/or the principal relationships between Consortium Members.

2.36 The Authority reserves the right, at its absolute discretion, not to consider any Bid where there is a change in the Consortium Members of any Bidder and/or the principal relationships between Consortium Members.

Sub-contracting arrangements

- 2.37 Where the Bidder proposes to use one or more sub-contractors to deliver some or all of the contract requirements, section 1.2(b)(ii) of the SQ (Appendix 6: SQ) must be fully completed providing details of the proposed bidding model that includes members of the supply chain, the percentage of work being delivered by each sub-contractor and the key contract deliverables each sub-contractor will be responsible for.
- 2.38 The Authority recognises that arrangements in relation to sub-contracting may be subject to future change, and may not be finalised until a later date. However, Bidders should be aware that where information provided to the Authority indicates that sub-contractors are to play a significant role in delivering key contract requirements, any changes to those sub-contracting arrangements may affect the ability of the Bidder to proceed with the Procurement Process or to provide the supplies and/or services required. Bidders should therefore notify the Authority immediately of any change in the proposed sub-contractor arrangements. the Authority reserves the right to deselect the Bidder prior to any award of contract, based on an assessment of the updated information.

Acceptance of Bids

- 2.39 Bidders are reminded that no contract is entered into until the relevant contractual documents have been duly signed on behalf of the Authority, the successful Bidder and all other relevant parties and declared unconditional. No dialogue or communication with the Authority, shall imply acceptance of any offer or constitute an indication that the Bidder will be awarded the contract.
- 2.40 The Contract shall be in the form set out in **Appendix 2** and subject to the Authority's Standard Conditions of Contract. Wherever special conditions of contract are contained in the ITT, the contract shall be subject to those special conditions in addition to the Standard Conditions of Contract, and where those special conditions are inconsistent with the Authority's Standard Conditions of Contract, the special conditions shall prevail.
- 2.41 Prior to the Contract being entered into Bidders will be required to hold firm the prices submitted in their Bid for 120 days and no increase will be accepted prior to the Contract being entered into.
- 2.42 The prices quoted in the Supplier's Bid shall remain fixed throughout the term of the Contract except as may be varied in accordance with the terms of the Contract.
- 2.43 <u>Contract terms will not be subject to negotiation.</u>

Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Environmental Information Regulations 2004

2.44 The Authority is subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (the "Act") and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 ("EIR"). Accordingly, all information submitted to it may need to be disclosed by the Authority in response to a request under either the Act or the EIR (a "Request").

- 2.45 In making any submission during this Procurement Process, each Bidder acknowledges and accepts that information contained therein may be disclosed by the Authority under the Act or EIR without consulting the Bidder, although the Authority will endeavour to consult with the Bidder and consider its views before doing so.
- 2.46 If Bidders consider that any information made available to the Authority is commercially sensitive, they should identify it and explain (in broad terms) what harm may result from disclosure, and the time period applicable to that sensitivity. Even where information made available to the Authority is marked commercially sensitive, the Authority shall be entitled (acting in its sole discretion) to disclose it pursuant to a Request. Please also note that information marked "confidential" or equivalent by Bidders does not bind the Authority to any duty of confidence by virtue of that marking.
- 2.47 Exemptions to disclosure pursuant to a Request do exist and the Authority reserves the right to determine (acting in its sole discretion) whether there is any available exemption and whether to disclose any information made available to it by Bidders pursuant to any Request. If you are unsure as to the Authority's obligations under the Act or EIR regarding the disclosure of sensitive information please seek independent legal advice.

Intellectual Property

- 2.48 This ITT (and all Procurement Documents) may not be reproduced, copied or stored in any medium without the prior written consent of the Authority except in relation to the preparation of a Bid.
- 2.49 All documentation supplied by the Authority in relation to this ITT (including all Procurement Documents) is and shall remain the property of the Authority and must be returned on demand, without any copies being retained. Bidders are not authorised to copy, reproduce, or distribute the information in the Procurement Documents at any time except as is necessary to produce a Bid.

3 TIMETABLE AND PROCESS

Procurement Timetable

3.1 The timetable below sets out the key dates in the Procurement Process.

Date	Stage
5 th December 2022	Procurement Documents made available over the internet.
6 th January 2023	Deadline for clarification questions
13 th January 2023	Deadline for return of Bids (to include the SQ and ITT responses)
13 th Jan – 20 th Jan 2023	Evaluation of SQ and ITT responses
13 th Jan – 20 th Jan 2023	Moderation of ITT responses and shortlist 5 tenderers
23 rd Jan – 27 th Jan 2023	Supplier Demonstrations NB: maximum of 5 suppliers will be invited to demos based on scores to the ITT question and compliance to the specification.
23 rd Jan – 27 th Jan 2023	Evaluation of demonstrations.
30 th Jan 2023	Moderation of and decision
30 th Jan 2023	Completion of the Authority approval and award decision processes.
31 st January 2023	Notification by the Authority of the award decision, debriefing unsuccessful Bidders and commencement of the standstill period.
10 th February 2023	Expiry of standstill period.
February 2023	Appointment of the successful Bidder, award of the contract and notification of contract conclusion to participants.

3.2 The Authority reserves the right to amend this timetable as the Procurement Process progresses.

PLEASE NOTE: The council will close on the 25th December 2022 and re-opens on the 3rd January 2023

General Information

3.3 Bidders are directed to the information in relation to conflicts, contained in paragraph 2.10 of **Section 2 (Important Notices)**, and the obligations of the Authority under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

Pre Bid Clarifications

- 3.4 Any queries arising from the Procurement Documents should be raised as soon as possible and in any event by no later than the date stated in the timetable at paragraph 3.1
- 3.5 Upon commencement of the Procurement Process Bidders must not approach any member or officer of the Authority with any queries, other than by using the messaging facility on the Procurement Portal.
- 3.6 When creating a clarification question through the 'Messaging' facility ensure the subject title is relevant to the question that is being asked.
- 3.7 In compliance with guidelines on equal and fair treatment of Bidders, any information that the Authority dispenses in response to requests for clarification will be distributed to all of the Bidders as opposed to solely the Bidder that requested the information.
- 3.8 Relevant questions together with the answers will be posted on the Procurement Portal and automatic e-mails will be sent to Bidders informing them that a new message has been posted and that they should visit the website to view it.
- 3.9 Bidders registering after clarifications have been posted will not receive notification that messages are available for viewing.
- 3.10 When Bidders first access the ITT they should satisfy themselves that they have seen any clarifications posted. It is in the Bidder's interest to visit the messages area regularly as clarifications may fundamentally affect their planned response.
- 3.11 On submitting a Bid in response to the ITT, it is the Bidder's responsibility to ensure that it fully understands the requirements and obligations of the ITT. The Authority cannot guarantee to respond to all clarification questions and cannot warrant the accuracy of clarification responses posted.

Bid Submissions

3.12 Bids must be submitted following the instructions set out in **Section 5 (Submission Instructions)**.

Post Bid Clarifications

3.13 Upon receipt of a Bid the Authority may wish to pose post-Bid clarification questions to Bidders. This process will be administered in writing via the messaging area within the Procurement Portal.

Selection Criteria

- 3.14 Bidders are required to complete and submit the selection questionnaire (SQ) alongside their ITT responses (i.e. by the deadline for Bid submissions). Bidders' SQ submissions will be evaluated prior to evaluation of the ITT responses as explained in paragraph 1.9 above.
- 3.15 Details of the approach to be taken to the evaluation of SQ submissions are contained in **Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document**. Bidders should read Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document before completing the SQ.

The Award Criteria and evaluation questions

- 3.16 Bidders' answers to each of the ITT questions must be self-contained without referring to additional documents, answers to other ITT questions or other supporting statements (unless specifically requested). Bidders should respond to each point in the question when providing its answer. The Authority reserves the right to mark the answer solely on the response to each question and have different evaluation panel teams evaluate different parts of each Bid. Evaluators will only read the response to each individual question they are evaluating; evaluators will not follow any cross-referencing to other parts of the Bid.
- 3.17 Answers should contain information to evidence and demonstrate what and how you intend to deliver the Goods and Services subject of this ITT.

Bidders' answers to the questions are limited to the number of words specified against the question in <u>Appendix 8: Council Requirements and Supplier Responses</u> (where applicable). Where a word limit is specified, <u>each word</u> within the answer will be counted towards the word count limit. For example:

- Forename Surname = two words;
- *"102"* = one word;
- All wording within or linked to diagrams, pictures, charts or tables (including their labels) will count towards the word limit;
- All text within diagrams, pictures, charts or tables <u>and</u> any diagrams, charts or tables "embedded" within text as a picture or an image will count towards the word limit.
- 3.18 Answers that exceed this word count will be cropped at the word count for the question (excess words over the word count will not be assessed or evaluated). The only exception to this is where words have been specifically stated not to be included within the word count; for example, if the Authority requests a document in support of a response and specifically advises that this document is excluded from the word count limit.

The Price Schedule

The Bidder's price will be calculated and weighted in accordance with the instructions detailed in **Section 6 (Evaluation)** and Appendix 9: Financial Submissions. The price element of the Bid will be scored and will contribute to the overall score for the Bid. The Authority seeks a fully costed and transparent contract price. These requirements will be clearly detailed in Appendix 9: Financial Submissions.

Completion of ITT

- 3.19 Evaluation of a Bid does not imply acceptance by the Authority of the Bidder's financial stability, technical competence or ability in any way to carry out the services. The Authority has the right to return to these matters as part of the formal Bid evaluation process.
- 3.20 The information Bidders provide will be relied upon for evaluation purposes and will be taken to be true and accurate. If subsequently the Authority decides that a Bid contains inaccurate information, the Authority may exclude that Bid (if still under evaluation) and/or terminate a Contract entered into as a result of that Bid.

Supplier Demonstrations

- 3.21 The Authority will require Bidders to attend a supplier demonstration hosted by a panel of internal stakeholders which will be scored as part of the evaluation criteria detailed in **Section 6 (Evaluation)**.
- 3.22 Supplier Demonstrations will be a key aspect of the quality evaluation process therefore the demonstrations should not be a sales pitch. Demonstrations will be used to assess submissions for compliance specification.
- 3.23 Demonstrations will be split into 4 specific subject matter areas and will involve the scoring of demonstrations by the evaluation panel using the elements of the specification using a 0 10 matrix. Please refer to document: **Guidance for evaluation of Supplier Demonstrations** for full details.

Confidentiality and Freedom of Information

- 3.24 Bidders must highlight pink any confidential or sensitive information contained in their Bid and mark with the words "in confidence not to be circulated to other Bidders" followed by brief reason(s) for the confidentiality of the information. Bidders should note that the Authority is likely to disclose the overall Bid price as part of the debriefing process.
- 3.25 Bidders must not mark the entirety of their Bid as confidential. Instead Bidders must highlight pink those aspects of their Bid which are genuinely confidential and explain the reasons for the sensitivity. Bidders should note that if they fail to comply with this, the Authority may treat the entirety of a Bid as non-confidential.
- 3.26 The Authority will have sole discretion as to whether or not to disclose information marked confidential, and in particular as to whether disclosure is required to comply with the Authority's duties under the applicable Public Contracts Regulations, Freedom of Information Act (2000), the Environmental Information Regulations (2004) and any associated transparency principles.
- 3.27 Please see further details regarding confidentiality in **Section 2 (Important Notices).**

Return of Certificates / Contractual Undertaking

- 3.28 The Authority requires Bidders to give certain undertakings. These undertakings include signing the following documents, which must be completed and submitted in accordance with **Appendix 3: Certificates** as part of a Bid. Copies of the certificates are provided in **Appendix 3: Certificates**.
 - Certificate of Non-Collusion
 - Certificate of Non-Canvassing
- 3.29 In addition, Bidders are required to complete and sign the Contractual Undertaking contained at **Appendix 4: Contractual Undertaking** in order to submit a Bid. Failure to complete this may result in a Bid being deemed non-compliant and not being evaluated.

Due diligence

3.30 Prior to reaching a contract award decision, the Authority will undertake due diligence on the highest scoring Bidder. This due diligence will be conducted on the certificates and documentation supporting the highest scoring Bidder's self-certified responses to the SQ. The Authority will request the supporting documentation from the highest scoring Bidder who must provide this without delay. The Authority's contract award decision will be subject to the satisfactory completion of this due diligence.

Contract Award

- 3.31 Contract award is subject to the formal approval process of the Authority. Until all necessary approvals are obtained and the standstill period completed, no contract(s) will be entered into.
- 3.32 Once the Authority has reached a decision in respect of contract award, it will notify all Bidders of that decision and provide for a standstill period in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 before entering into any contract.

4 SPECIFICATION

About the Specification

- 4.1 The Goods and Services are described in the Specification in **Appendix 1: Specification** to this ITT.
- 4.2 Through their responses Bidders shall demonstrate how they intend to deliver the Goods and Services subject of this Specification.

Alternative Bids

4.3 Alternative bids will not be accepted.

Environmental Issues

4.4 The Supplier will be expected to deliver this Contract in as environmentally friendly manner as possible and to work with the Authority to improve sustainability through the life of this Contract, on issues such as packaging, miles travelled and use of raw materials.

Disability Confident Committed

4.5 London Borough of Hounslow are a Disability Confident Committed organisation and are working to achieve the status of a Disability Confident Employer in the near future. We would like to encourage all bidders to consider working towards this standard. Information can be found at; <u>https://disabilityconfident.campaign.gov.uk/</u>

Cost Strategy

4.6 the Authority seeks a fully costed and transparent contract price. These requirements will be clearly detailed within <u>Appendix 9: Financial Submissions</u>.

5 SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

General

- 5.1 The Authority will reject Bids delivered after the date and time specified as the deadline. Please see **Section 2 (Important Notices)**.
- 5.2 The Authority reserves the right, at its discretion, to request clarifications in writing or further relevant information from any Bidder after the submission of Bids.
- 5.3 All responses must be submitted electronically through the Procurement Portal. Bids which are, e-mailed, posted, hand-delivered or faxed to the Authority **may not** be considered.
- 5.4 It is your responsibility to ensure that your Bid is submitted prior to the closing date/time.
- 5.5 You should ensure that you leave enough time to upload and submit your Bid.

Bid documentation

5.6 **Section 0 (Bid Checklist)** contains a Bid Checklist for use by Bidders in checking that they have completed and returned the necessary documentation as part of their Bid in response to this ITT.

Return of Bid documentation

- 5.7 The Authority is using a secure (hosted) electronic bidding system (i.e. the Procurement Portal).
- 5.8 User guides are available from the Help menu throughout the Procurement Portal. Bidders are advised to make themselves familiar with the content of the user guides prior to uploading Bids by using the topics within the 'Help' menu located on the header bar of all pages.
- 5.9 Please indicate via the Procurement Portal whether you intend to submit a Bid in response to this invitation by selecting "Register intent to respond" or "No longer wish to respond" under the Response Controls.
- 5.10 To complete your electronic Bid, it must be downloaded to your system, completed and uploaded to the correct area of the Procurement Portal in accordance with the return instructions and the stated deadline for submission of responses. Bidders should be aware that the Authority is unable to open any Bid submissions until after the specified closing date and time for the receipt of Bids. Until this time, Bids are stored in an e-vault and cannot be accessed in any manner by any the Authority staff.
- 5.11 The full Bid must be completed and returned in the published format (i.e. Microsoft Word). Failure to comply with this instruction may result in your Bid submission being discounted. Your Bid must be submitted through the Procurement Portal (this may be submitted at any time prior to the closing time and date). Submission of electronic Bids should not be left to the last moment as it may take some time to upload your completed Bid. The server timestamps (GMT) Bids when they are

submitted. Bids submitted after the stated closing date and time **may not** be considered. Bids may be rejected if they are not properly completed.

- 5.12 Where Appendices to this ITT and/or forms submitted by Bidders during the Procurement Process require signing either by the Bidders or a third party (e.g. a bank authority or insurance certificate), electronically completed versions are acceptable for bidding purposes. Therefore, the Authority will accept scanned copies of original signed forms and the Authority will also accept either scanned copies of original signed Appendices or copies of the Appendices with typed signatures. Fully signed hard copies of any forms will be required from Bidder(s) prior to the award of the Contract.
- 5.13 All responses should be in English, text submitted in A4, with a font size of no less than 11 and any financial references should be in Pounds Sterling.
- 5.14 Where additional information has been requested (e.g. a company structure chart), this information should be clearly named so as to identify the file's contents and should be uploaded with your Bid response.

Attachments

- 5.15 Where specifically requested, attachments must be submitted as separate documents, preferably as PDF files. They should be clearly named so that it is obvious what each attached file contains and which question it relates to.
- 5.16 Attachments that have not been requested as part of the Bid submission will be ignored and will not be taken into consideration as part of the evaluation process.

6 EVALUATION

General

- 6.1 This Section 6 sets out the evaluation criteria against which the ITT responses will be assessed.
- 6.2 Bidders are required to respond to each of the questions set out in <u>Appendix 8:</u> <u>Council Requirements and Supplier Responses</u> and complete in full the requirements in **Appendix 9: Financial Submissions.**

Evaluation Criteria and Weightings

6.3 The contract award decision will be made on the basis of the most economically advantageous Bid, based on the application of the detailed evaluation criteria (and sub-criteria) shown in **Appendix 7: Award Criteria**.

Evaluation Methodology

- 6.4 Prior to carrying out the detailed scoring of Bids, the Authority will conduct compliance checks. Bids which are substantially incomplete or which are non-compliant with the requirements set out in this ITT may be rejected.
- 6.5 Each Bid will be evaluated and scored against the evaluation criteria and weightings and Bidders ranked in line with their combined scores based on their quality and pricing submissions.
- 6.6 The evaluators will allocate scores in accordance with the scoring scale at paragraph 6.9, and the award criteria published in this document (**Appendix 7: Award Criteria**).
- 6.7 The Authority reserves the right to update and refine the evaluation approach (set out in this Section 6, the quality questions (<u>Appendix 8: Council Requirements and Supplier Responses</u>) and sub-criteria as well as the financial submission prior to the Bid submission deadline.
- 6.8 Once the quality and price scores have been allocated and moderated the weightings are applied and the resulting quality and price scores are combined for each Bidder to produce a final overall score for that Bidder. The successful Bidder will be the one that submits the highest scoring overall Bid

Quality Evaluation

Scoring Scale

6.9 In relation to the Quality criteria and sub-criteria (as indicated in **Appendix 7: Award Criteria**), each question will be scored in application of the following scoring scale:

SCORING SCALE				
Score Represents				
0	Very weak or no answer			

1	Weak - well below expectations		
2	Poor - well below expectations		
3	Poor - below expectations		
4	Satisfactory but slightly below expectations		
5	Meets expectations		
6	Slightly exceeds expectations		
7	Good-well above expectations		
8	Very good		
9	Outstanding		
10	Exceptional		

6.10 In applying the scoring scale, each Bid will be evaluated according to its quality and deliverability. The term 'quality' in this context refers to performance and fitness for purpose of the proposal and therefore covers any aspect of a submission that affects the performance of the contract. 'Deliverability' refers to the likelihood that all aspects of a particular submission could in fact be delivered by the Bidder concerned.

Evaluation Panel

- 6.11 Each member of the evaluation panel will assess each Bid separately. Questions may be divided between evaluation panel members so that an evaluator may not read the entirety of a Bid.
- 6.12 The evaluation panel members will, on an individual basis for each Bidder's response to a question, decide which commentary most accurately describes the response. The evaluation panel members will record the corresponding score and the strengths and weaknesses of the response.
- 6.13 Only the score corresponding to the commentary detailed in the scoring matrix may be awarded to a response. No other scores may be used and decimal scores are not permitted (e.g. 3.6).

Moderation

- 6.14 A moderation process will then be undertaken with the evaluation panel to discuss and agree an overall single consensus score for each response where individual evaluator scores differed in relation to a Bidder's response to a question.
- 6.15 Each question will be awarded a consensus score in accordance with the scoring scale at 6.9. This consensus score will be divided by the highest score available for that question to give a percentage score. The percentage score will then be multiplied by the question weighting to provide a weighted score for each question.

- 6.16 All weighted scores from each award criterion will then be added together to give a final quality score total for each Bidder's Bid. At each stage of the process all mathematical results will be rounded to two decimal places.
- 6.17 For illustration purposes, a worked example to demonstrate the scoring process is provided below <u>Please note that the weightings and marks available in the example relate only to the example and not to this Procurement Process.</u>

Example:

Figure 1, below, shows the overall Quality and Price weightings for this example procurement process:

Figure 1: Example Evaluation Criteria and Weightings

Criteria	Criteria weighting
Quality	60%
Price	40%
TOTAL	100%

Figure 2, below, shows the detailed criteria and weightings for this example procurement process:

Criteria	Criteria Weighting	Level 1 - Sub-Criteria	Sub- Criteria Weighting	Level 2 – Sub-Criteria	Level 2 – Sub- Criteria Weighting
Quality	60%	Technical Merit	40%	Question 1	20%
				Question 2	10%
				Question 3	10%
		After Sales Service	20%	Question 4	15%
				Question 5	5%
Price	40%		40%		40%
TOTAL	100%		100%		100%

Figure 2 Example Detailed Criteria and Weightings

In This example, the overall Quality criterion of 60% is made up of two sets of Level 1 sub-criteria:

- (1) Technical Merit (40% of the overall score); and
- (2) After Sales Service (20% of the overall score).

Each Level 1 sub-criterion is made up of Level 2 sub-criteria which are the individual questions (Question 1, Question 2 etc). Each Level 2 sub-criterion weighting is shown next to the Level 2 sub-criterion.

Worked Example

The quality scores awarded for 'Bidder 1' for this example procurement process are detailed in Figure 3 below:

Figure 3 Example Bidder 1 Quality Score

Level 2 – Sub-Criteria	Level 2 – Sub-Criteria Weighting	Consensus Score Awarded	Score Calculation	Score Awarded
Question 1	20%	6	(6/10) x 20	12.00
Question 2	10%	10	(10/10) x 10	10.00
Question 3	10%	8	(8/10) x 10	8.00
Question 4	15%	8	(8/10) x 15	12.00
Question 5	5%	4	(4/10) x 5	2.00
		Total Weighted Q	uality Score for <u>Bidder 1</u>	44.00

For each question, the consensus score awarded (which will range from 0-10) will be divided by 10 and then multiplied by the Level 2 sub-criteria weighting to arrive at the score awarded. Each of the scores awarded is then added together to calculate the Bidder's total weighted Quality score.

For example, for Question 1, Bidder 1's consensus score awarded was '6'. 6 is divided by 10 (6/10) and then multiplied by the Level 2 sub-criteria weighting for Question 1, which is 20, to arrive at the score awarded for Question 1. $(6/10) \times 20 = 12$.

This process is repeated for Questions 2 through 5 and then the five scores awarded to Bidder 1 are added together to produce Bidder 1's total quality score. In this example, Bidder 1 has achieved a total weighted Quality score of 44 out of a maximum possible score of 60.

Social Value and Environmental Commitments

- 6.18 The bidder needs to complete the Social Value Commitments Excel document. The bidder is not required to offer every item in this document. The bidder is not expected to populate every cell in the document.
- 6.19 Bids will be evaluated by applying the methodology set out below to the response provided by Bidders in their Submissions, in the format set out in Appendix B: Social Value Commitments.
- 6.20 The highest offer will score 100 marks. The other offers will then receive scores expressed as an inverse proportion of the highest offer. All results will be rounded to two decimal places. The example below is for Social Value, the Environmental Commitment will be evaluated in the same manner. The formula used will be:
- 6.21 (Bidders Score/Highest Bidder's score) x 100 = Bidder's score
- 6.22 Example: Highest Bid offer = 1000. Bidder 1's Bid offer = 800. Bidder 1's offer would attract a score of 80 calculated as follows:
- 6.23 800/1000 = 0.0.8 x 100 = 80
- 6.24 Scores will then be multiplied by the social value or environmental weighting to give a social value score.
- 6.25 Example: In this example the social value score of 80 is then multiplied by the overall social value weighting of 5%, to give a final social value score for evaluation purposes, of 4 calculated as follows: $80 \times 0.05 = 4$

Price Evaluation

- 6.26 The price evaluation will be conducted by a separate evaluation team from the Quality evaluation team.
- 6.27 Price will be evaluated by applying the methodology set out below to the response provided by Bidders in their Financial Submissions in the format set out in Appendix 1: Financial Submissions.
- 6.28 The lowest Bid price will score 100 marks. The other offers will then receive scores expressed as an inverse proportion of the lowest price. All results will be rounded to two decimal places. The formula used will be:
- 6.29 (Lowest Bid Price/Bidder's price) x 100 = Bidder's price score

- 6.30 Example: Lowest Bid price = £1000. Bidder 1's Bid price = £1300. Bidder 1's price would attract a score of 76.92 calculated as follows:
- 6.31 1000/1300 = 0.7692 x 100 = 76.92
- 6.32 Price scores will then be multiplied by the price weighting to give a final price score.
- 6.33 Example: In this example the price score of 76.92 is then multiplied by the overall price weighting of 40%, to give a final price score for evaluation purposes of 30.77 calculated as follows: $76.92 \times 0.40 = 30.77$
- 6.34 If a Bidder submits a free of charge Bid, for evaluation purposes, that offer will be allocated a price of 1p. The Bid with a price of 1p will attract 100% of the marks available for the price score and the other offers will then receive scores expressed as an inverse proportion of the 1p Bid.

Final Evaluation Score

6.35 The final overall Quality, Social Value and Price scores for each Bidder is obtained by adding the final weighted Quality, SV score for that Bidder to the final weighted Price score for that Bidder. This will provide an overall combined score out of 100.

7 BID CHECKLIST

- 7.1 Bidders should ensure that they have fully read this ITT and each of the Appendices to the ITT (including the Specification and the Contract) before commencing the completion of their Bids.
- 7.2 The checklist below should be used by Bidders to check that they have considered all necessary Procurement Documents and that they have completed and returned all Appendices which will form part of their Bids.

	Document title	Document location (if not contained in this ITT)	Action	Complete
1.	ITT		Read	
2.	ITT front sheet only		Complete name and submit with Bid	
3.	Appendix 1: Specification		Read	
4.	Appendix 2: <u>Contract</u>		Read	
5.	Appendix 3: Certificates		Read, sign and submit	
6.	Appendix 4: Contractual Undertaking		Read, sign and submit	
7.	Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document		Read	
8.	Appendix 6: SQ		Read, complete, sign and submit	
9.	Appendix 7: Award Criteria		Read	
10.	Appendix 8: Council Requirements and Supplier Responses		Read, complete and submit	
11.	Appendix 9: Financial Submissions		Read, complete, sign and submit	
12.				

Appendix 1: Specification

Please refer to document: Specification - Engagement Platform - Final version

Appendix 2: Contract

Please refer to document: Standard terms and conditions for the supply of services

Appendix 3: Certificates

BID FOR THE ENGAGEMENT PLATFORM FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW

CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION

In the case of a Consortium, each Consortium Member must complete and return this Certificate.

To London Borough of Hounslow ("the Authority")

The essence of the public procurement process is that the Authority shall receive bona fide competitive Bids from all Bidders. In recognition of this principle I/We certify that this is a bona fide Bid, intended to be competitive and that I/we have not fixed or adjusted the amount of the Bid or the rates and prices quoted by or under or in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other party.

I/We also certify that I/we have not done and undertake that I/we will not do at any time any of the following acts:

- a) communicate to a party other than the Authority the amount or approximate amount of my/our proposed Bid (other than in confidence in order to obtain quotations necessary for the preparation of the Bid):
- enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other party that he shall refrain from b) bidding or as to the amount of any Bid to be submitted;
- offer or agree to pay or give or pay or give any sum of money inducement or valuable C) consideration directly or indirectly to any person for doing or having done or causing or having caused any act or omission to be done in relation to any other Bid or the proposed Bid: or
- d) enters into any type of agreement or arrangement with any other party aimed at distorting the outcome of the competition

In this Certificate:

- the word "person" includes any person, body or association, corporate or incorporate
- the phrase "any agreement or arrangement" includes any transaction, formal or informal whether legally binding or not.
- the word "Bid" includes all Bid submissions

SIGNED 1

2

.......Managing Director.....

POSITION

SIGNED POSITION Managing Director.....

On behalf ofJonathan Paul Bostock	
Date13 th January 2023	

BID FOR THE ENGAGEMENT PLATFORM FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW

CERTIFICATE OF NON-CANVASSING

In the case of a Consortium, each Consortium Member must complete and return this Certificate.

To London Borough of Hounslow ("the Authority")

I/We hereby certify that I/we have not in connection with the award of the contract for The Procurement or any other proposed contract for the Engagement Platform For The London Borough Of Hounslow

- canvassed any member, employee, agent of the Authority
- undertaken to unduly influence the decision-making process of the Authority
- undertaken to obtain confidential information that could confer upon me/us an undue advantage in the award of the contract

and that no person employed by me/us or acting on my/our behalf has done any such act.

I/We further hereby undertake that I/we will not in the future do or seek to do the prohibited acts referred to above and that no person employed by me/us or acting on my/our behalf will do any such act.

POSITION . Managing Director.....

SIGNED

1

2	SIGNED	
	POSITION	Managing Director

		ul Bostock	
Date13 ^{TI}	^H January 2023		

Appendix 4: Contractual Undertaking

BID FOR THE ENGAGEMENT PLATFORM FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW

CONTRACTUAL UNDERTAKING (FORM OF TENDER)

To: London Borough of Hounslow ("the Authority"); I/We having read the Brief delivered to me/us do hereby offer to execute and complete the whole of the services described therein, for the sum of:

£ 41,000 (1 Year); £101,000 (3 Years); £161,000 (5 Years)

Total of Above in Words

Forty One Thousands Pounds for 1 Year

- Exclusive of Value Added Tax

I/We undertake in the event of your acceptance to execute with you a form of contract embodying all the conditions and terms contained in this offer.

I/We understand that London Borough of Hounslow My substitute the works and our tender offer will thus be adjusted accordingly.

The amount of Value Added Tax which London Borough of Hounslow will be called upon to pay in addition to our tender is:

£8,200 (year 1)

I/We undertake to commence the services in accordance with agreed timetable as listed. I/We agree that should obvious errors in pricing or errors in arithmetic be discovered before acceptance of this offer in the priced tender document submitted by me/us these errors may be corrected, unless mutually agreed otherwise.

I/We agree that until a formal agreement is prepared and executed this tender together with your acceptance thereof shall constitute a binding contract between us.

I/We further agree that this tender remains open for consideration for 26 weeks, from the closing date defined in the invitation letter.

...... Date: 13th JANUARY *Signed: 2023.....

Name: (in block capitals): MR JONATHAN PAUL BOSTOCK

In the capacity of:Managing Director..... on behalf of: Your Place Your Space Ltd..... (State official position, i.e. Director, Manager, Secretary etc.).

Company Name and postal address: YOUR PLACE YOUR SPACE LTD 29 FRANCIS ROAD, BIRMINGHAM B16 8SN.....

*Company Registration Number and legal form:7388106.....

*(It must be clearly shown whether the Bidder is a limited company, statutory corporation, partnership or single individual, trading under his own or another name, and if the signatory is not the actual Bidder, the capacity in which he/she signs or is employed).

Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document

PART 1: INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW

Introduction

- 1.1 This SQ Explanatory Document (Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document), is intended to accompany the Selection Questionnaire ("SQ") (Appendix 6: SQ). This SQ Explanatory Document provides information about the selection stage process and evaluation.
- 1.2 The SQ is a separate document which sets out the form of questionnaire that Bidders must complete and submit to the Authority as part of their Bids. Bidders are advised to read this SQ Explanatory Document <u>before</u> completing and submitting their SQ response.

Overview of the document and procurement process

- 1.3 The SQ includes a questionnaire that asks for financial and technical information from you. The financial information which we are asking you to provide allows the Authority to be satisfied that Bidders have adequate financial and other resources and will be in a position to continue to deliver the services throughout the contract period. The technical information allows the Authority to assess whether Bidders have the relevant skills and experience to be capable of performing the proposed contract to meet the Authority's needs.
- 1.4 The Authority intends to review the SQ responses provided by Bidders and evaluate those responses using the selection stage criteria and weightings and following the methodology explained below.

Selection Evaluation Matrix

- 1.5 In completing their SQ submissions, Bidders should not assume that the Authority has any prior knowledge of the Bidder, its practice, reputation or its involvement in existing services, projects or procurements. In evaluating SQ submissions, except as set out in paragraph 1.6 below, the Authority will only consider information provided in response to the SQ (which may include customer references sought regarding the contracts included in Section 6 responses of the SQ).
- 1.6 Notwithstanding paragraph 1.5 above, the Authority may take account of any prior knowledge it has of the Bidder, its practice, reputation or its involvement in existing services, projects or procurements to the extent that such knowledge indicates that information contained in the Bidder's SQ submission is false, misleading or inaccurate.
- 1.7 The Authority will consider the information in Parts 1 and 2 of the SQ submission. The Authority will exclude any Bidder who answers 'Yes' to the Exclusion Grounds in Section 2 of the SQ and may exclude any Bidder who answers 'Yes' to the Exclusion Grounds in Section 3 of the SQ. The decision to exclude Bidders in relation to the Exclusion Grounds will be subject to evidence of self-cleaning being provided by Bidders demonstrating the reliability of the Bidder despite the existence of a relevant exclusion ground and the Authority considering such evidence to be sufficient.

1.8 The Authority will then assess SQ submission responses to ascertain that its minimum pass/fail compliance requirements have been met.

Evaluation methodology

1.9 The evaluation methodology for each section of the SQ is set out below.

Economic and Financial Standing Evaluation Methodology (SQ Section 4)

- 1.10 The financial information requested and submitted in response to **Question 4.1 and 4.2** (Economic and Financial Standing) of the SQ will be evaluated and assessed by the Authority in the following way:
 - Tenderers must demonstrate a minimum annual turnover of at least £250K
 - The Council uses a credit reference agency (Creditsafe) as the first step in determining financial risk. The Council will request an Creditsafe financial risk score based on the information provided in response to the Selection Questionnaire. The report provided by Creditsafe will be used to determine the level of financial risk you represent. If the score provided by Creditsafe is 50 or more (where a standard UK score is available), or the risk level is equivalent or better (where a standard International score is available) then you will be allocated a 'pass' and the Tender will proceed to Stage 3 of the Selection Stage evaluation process.

If any of the following circumstances arise:

- The score provided by Creditsafe (where a standard UK score is available) is less than 50;
- The risk level is high (i.e. worse than) (where a standard international score is available);
- No standard Creditsafe score is available for your organisation; or
- The Applicant does not meet the minimum annual turnover stated in 1.10,

Then the Council may ask you to provide a copy of your audited accounts for the most recent two years and/or one or more of the following in respect of your organisation or the proposed Contract Guarantor (as the case may be):

- A copy of the audited accounts for the most recent two years
- A statement of the turnover, profit & loss account, current liabilities and assets, and cash flow for the most recent year of trading for this organisation;
- A statement of the cash flow forecast for the current year and a bank letter outlining the current cash and credit position
- Alternative means of demonstrating financial status if any of the above are not available (e.g. Forecast of turnover for the current year and a statement of funding)

- The Council will use the information described above, in addition to a detailed Creditsafe report (where available) to assess whether organisation's or your proposed Contract Guarantor's financial risk is average or better. This will be performed using the Council's financial assessment template. This covers a range of financial risk indicators, similar to those used by credit reference agencies.
 - If the Council then determines the financial risk is determined as being acceptable, you will be allocated a 'pass' and the Tender will proceed to the next stage of the evaluation.
 - If the Council determines the financial risk is determined as being above (i.e. worse than) average, the Tender will be excluded from further involvement in this Procurement.
- If the Council carries out a financial risk assessment on your organisation and its financial risk is determined as being above (i.e. worse than) average and you did not indicate that a Contract Guarantee will be provided, the Council may (in its sole discretion) request that you nominate a Contract Guarantor. If you nominate a Contract Guarantor the Council will also undertake the steps at 1.10 in respect of the proposed Contract Guarantor; please note that the Council will not carry out further financial risk assessments if the proposed Contract Guarantor is also excluded.
- If you are acting as a Lead Contact acting for a consortium assessment of economic and financial standing will be carried out in respect of each member of the Consortium. If one or more member of the Group of Economic Operators fails this assessment then the entire Tender will be excluded from further involvement in this Procurement.

Methodology for Section 5 of the SQ – Wider Group

- 1.11 Where a Bidder relies on the capacity of other entities with regard to criteria relating to the assessment of economic and financial standing, the Authority reserves the right to require the Bidder and those entities to be jointly liable for the execution of the contract.
- 1.12 The responses to **Questions 5.1 to 5.3** of the SQ will be evaluated and assessed by the Authority in the following way: Pass/Fail

Methodology for SQ Section 6 - Technical and Professional Ability

1.13 The responses to **Questions 6.1 to 6.3** of the SQ will be evaluated and assessed by the Authority in the following way: Information Only

Methodology for SQ Section 7 - Modern Slavery Act 2015

38 of 63

- 1.14 The responses to **Questions 7.1 and 7.2** of the SQ will be evaluated and assessed by the Authority in the following way:
 - Organisations that answer Yes to question 7.1 but are not able to show compliance with the Act will receive a Fail and will not be considered for this tender.

Methodology for Additional Questions (SQ Section 8)

- 1.15 The responses to **Questions [8.1 to 8.4]** of the SQ will be evaluated and assessed by the Authority in the following way:
 - Insurance Pass/fail
 - Question 8.4a is for information only and will not be scored. If the answer to question 1 is "No", the bidder is not required to answer the remaining questions (8.4 b,c and d)
 - Questions 8.4 b, c and d will be assessed on a pass/fail basis based on selfdeclarations by the bidder.
- 1.16 For Question 8.4 b,c and d the following are acceptable means of evidence:

	Evidence for self-declarations: Prior to contract award the		
	vidence will be required from the successful bidder (where the bidder has		
	"Yes" to question 8.4a above) in order to verify the bidder's responses		
Question	Evidence		
2	A copy of your standard payment terms for all of your supply chain		
	contracts.		
3	A copy of your procedures for resolving disputed invoices promptly and		
	effectively.		
3	Details of any payments of interest for late payments you have paid in		
	the past twelve months or which became due during the past twelve		
	months and remain payable (contractually or under late payment		
	legislation) and, if any such payment has been made (or arose), an		
	explanation as to why this occurred and an outline of what remedial		
	steps have been taken to ensure this does not occur again.		
4	A copy of your standard payment terms used with sub-contractors on		
	public sector contracts subject to the Public Contract Regulations 2015		

Appendix 6: SQ

London Borough of Hounslow

SELECTION QUESTIONNAIRE

Engagement Platform for the London Borough of Hounslow

Candidate to insert their company/organisation name

YOUR PLACE YOUR SPACE LIMITED

Potential Supplier Information and Exclusion Grounds: Part 1 and Part 2.

The standard Selection Questionnaire is a self-declaration, made by you (the potential supplier), that you do not meet any of the grounds for exclusion¹. If there are grounds for exclusion, there is an opportunity to explain the background and any measures you have taken to rectify the situation (we call this self-cleaning).

A completed declaration of Part 1 and Part 2 provides a formal statement that the organisation making the declaration has not breached any of the exclusions grounds. Consequently we require all the organisations that you will rely on to meet the selection criteria to provide a completed Part 1 and Part 2. For example these could be parent companies, affiliates, associates, or essential sub-contractors, if they are relied upon to meet the selection criteria. This means that where you are joining in a group of organisations, including joint ventures and partnerships, each organisation in that group must complete one of these self-declarations. Sub-contractors that you rely on to meet the selection criteria must also complete a self-declaration (although sub-contractors that are not relied upon do not need to complete the self-declaration).

When completed, this form is to be uploaded to the Procurement Portal as part of the submission along with the selection information requested in the procurement documentation.

¹ For the list of exclusion please see https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/551130/List_of_Mandatory_and _Discretionary_Exclusions.pdf

Supplier Selection Questions: Part 3

The SQ Explanatory Document will provide instructions on the selection questions you need to respond to and how to submit those responses. If you are bidding on behalf of a group (consortium) or you intend to use sub-contractors, you should complete all of the selection questions on behalf of the consortium and/or any sub-contractors.

If the relevant documentary evidence referred to in the Selection Questionnaire is not provided upon request and without delay we reserve the right to amend the contract award decision and award to the next compliant bidder.

Consequences of misrepresentation

If you seriously misrepresent any factual information in filling in the Selection Questionnaire, and so induce an authority to enter into a contract, there may be significant consequences. You may be excluded from the procurement procedure, and from bidding for other contracts for three years. If a contract has been entered into you may be sued for damages and the contract may be rescinded. If fraud, or fraudulent intent, can be proved, you or your responsible officers may be prosecuted and convicted of the offence of fraud by false representation, and you must be excluded from further procurements for five years.

ENGAGEMENT PLATFORM FOR THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW

PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE: OPEN

Introduction

Before completing this Selection Questionnaire (SQ), please carefully review the accompanying ITT and in particular the SQ Explanatory Document (Appendix 5: SQ Explanatory Document).

Notes for completion

- 1. The "authority" means the contracting authority, or anyone acting on behalf of the contracting authority, that is seeking to invite suitable candidates to participate in this procurement process.
- 2. "You" / "Your" refers to the potential supplier completing this standard Selection Questionnaire i.e. the legal entity responsible for the information provided. The term "potential supplier" is intended to cover any economic operator as defined by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (referred to as the "regulations") and could be a registered company; the lead contact for a group of economic operators; charitable organisation; Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE); Special Purpose Vehicle; or other form of entity.
- 3. Please ensure that all questions are completed in full, and in the format requested. If the question does not apply to you, please state 'N/A'. Should you need to provide additional information in response to the questions, please submit a clearly identified annex.
- 4. The authority recognises that arrangements set out in section 1.2 of the standard Selection Questionnaire, in relation to a group of economic operators (for example, a consortium) and/or use of sub-contractors, may be subject to change and will, therefore, not be finalised until a later date. The lead contact must notify the authority immediately of any change in the proposed arrangements and ensure a completed Part 1 and Part 2 is submitted for any new organisation relied on to meet the selection criteria. The authority will make a revised assessment of the submission based on the updated information.
- 5. For Part 1 and Part 2 every organisation that is being relied on to meet the selection must complete and submit the self-declaration.
- 6. All sub-contractors are required to complete Part 1 and Part 2^2 .
- 7. For answers to Part 3 If you are bidding on behalf of a group, for example, a consortium, or you intend to use sub-contractors, you must complete all of the questions on behalf of the consortium and/ or any sub-contractors, providing one composite response and declaration.

The authority confirms that it will keep confidential and will not disclose to any third parties any information obtained from a named customer contact, other than to the Cabinet Office and/or contracting authorities defined by the regulations, or pursuant to an order of the court or demand made by any competent authority or body where the authority is under a legal or regulatory obligation to make such a disclosure.

² See PCR 2015 regulations 71 (8)-(9)

Part 1: Potential supplier Information

Please answer the following questions in full. Note that every organisation that is being relied on to meet the selection must complete and submit the Part 1 and Part 2 self-declaration.

Section 1	Potential supplier information	
Question number	Question	Response
1.1(a)	Full name of the potential supplier submitting the information	Your Place Your Space Ltd
1.1(b) — (i)	Registered office address (if applicable)	15 Colmore Row Birmingham B3 2BH
1.1(b) — (ii)	Registered website address (if applicable)	www.yourplaceyourspace.com
1.1(c)	Trading status a) public limited company b) limited company c) limited liability partnership d) other partnership e) sole trader f) third sector g) other (please specify your trading status)	(B)
1.1(d)	Date of registration in country of origin	27/09/2010
1.1(e)	Company registration number (if applicable)	7388106
1.1(f)	Charity registration number (if applicable)	
1.1(g)	Head office DUNS number (if applicable)	216917850
1.1(h)	Registered VAT number	GB103824837
1.1(i) - (i)	If applicable, is your organisation registered with the appropriate professional or trade register(s) in the member state where it is established?	Yes No N/A
1.1(i) - (ii)	If you responded yes to 1.1(i) - (i), please provide the relevant details, including the registration number(s).	
1.1(j) - (i)	Is it a legal requirement in the state where you are established for you to possess a particular authorisation, or be a member of a particular organisation in order to provide the services specified in this procurement?	Yes 🗌 No N/A
1.1(j) - (ii)	If you responded yes to 1.1(j) - (i), please provide additional details of what is required and confirmation that you have complied with this.	
1.1(k)	Trading name(s) that will be used if successful in this procurement	Your Place Your Space Limited
1.1(l)	Relevant classifications (state whether you fall within one of these, and if so which one)	N/A

	 a) Voluntary Community Social Enterprise (VCSE) b) Sheltered Workshop c) Public service mutual 	
1.1(m)	Are you a Small, Medium or Micro Enterprise (SME) ³ ?	Yes x No
1.1(n)	Details of Persons of Significant Control (PSC), where appropriate: ⁴ - Name; - Date of birth; - Nationality; - Country, state or part of the UK where the PSC usually lives; - Service address; - The date he or she became a PSC in relation to the company (for existing companies the 6 April 2016 should be used); - Which conditions for being a PSC are met; - Over 25% up to (and including) 50%, - More than 50% and less than 75%, - 75% or more. ⁵	Mr Jonathan Paul Bostock 11.08.1958 British
	(Please enter N/A if not applicable)	
1.1(0)	 Details of immediate parent company: Full name of the immediate parent company Registered office address (if applicable) Registration number (if applicable) Head office DUNS number (if applicable) Head office VAT number (if applicable) 	N/A
	(Please enter N/A if not applicable)	
1.1(p)	Details of ultimate parent company: - Full name of the ultimate parent company - Registered office address (if applicable) - Registration number (if applicable) - Head office DUNS number (if applicable) - Head office VAT number (if applicable) (Please enter N/A if not applicable)	N/A

³ See EU definition of SME <u>https://ec.europa.eu/growth/smes/business-friendly-environment/sme-definition_en</u> ⁴ UK companies, Societates European (SEs) and limited liability partnerships (LLPs) will be required to identify and record the people who own or control their company. Companies, SEs and LLPs will need to keep a PSC register, and must file the PSC information with the central public register at Companies House. See PSC

guidance. ⁵ Central Government contracting authorities should use this information to have the PSC information for the preferred supplier checked before award.

Please note: A criminal record check for relevant convictions may be undertaken for the preferred suppliers and the persons of significant in control of them.

Section 1	Bidding model		
Question number	Question	Response	
1.2(a) - (i)	Are you bidding as the lead contact for a group of economic operators?	Yes \Box No x \Box If yes, please provide details listed in questions 1.2(a) (ii), (a) (iii) and to 1.2(b) (i), (b) (ii), 1.3, Section 2 and 3. If no, and you are a supporting bidder please provide the name of your group at 1.2(a) (ii) for reference purposes,	
1.2(a) - (ii)	Name of group of economic operators (if applicable)	and complete 1.3, Section 2 and 3. N/A	
1.2(a) - (iii)	Proposed legal structure if the group of economic operators intends to form a named single legal entity prior to signing a contract, if awarded. If you do not propose to form a single legal entity, please explain the legal structure.	N/A	
1.2(b) - (i)	Are you or, if applicable, the group of economic operators proposing to use sub-contractors?		
1.2(b) - (ii)		e provide additional details for each sub- y ask them to complete this form as well.	

Please provide the following information about your approach to this procurement:

The approximate % of contractual obligations assigned to		
each sub- contractor		

Contact details and declaration

I declare that to the best of my knowledge the answers submitted and information contained in this document are correct and accurate.

I declare that, upon request and without delay I will provide the certificates or documentary evidence referred to in this document.

I understand that the information will be used in the selection process to assess my organisation's suitability to be invited to participate further in this procurement.

I understand that the authority may reject this submission in its entirety if there is a failure to answer all the relevant questions fully, or if false/misleading information or content is provided in any section.

Section 1	Contact details and declaration		
Question number	Question	Response	
1.3(a)	Contact name	Jonathan Bostock	
1.3(b)	Name of organisation	Your Place Your Space Ltd	
1.3(c)	Role in organisation	Managing Director	
1.3(d)	Phone number	07432637322	
1.3(e)	E-mail address	Jonathan.bostock@yourplaceyourspace.com	
1.3(f)	Postal address	29 Francis Road, Birmingham B16 8SN	
1.3(g)	Signature (electronic is acceptable)		
1.3(h)	Date	13 th January 2023	

Part 2: Exclusion Grounds

Please answer the following questions in full. Note that every organisation that is being relied on to meet the selection must complete and submit the Part 1 and Part 2 self-declaration.

Section 2	Grounds for mandatory exclusion		
Questio	Question	Response	
n number			
	Regulations 57(1) and (2)		
2.1(a)	The detailed grounds for mandatory exclusion this <u>webpage</u> , which should be referred to be		
	Please indicate if, within the past five years you, your organisation or any other person who has powers of representation, decision or control in the organisation been convicted anywhere in the world of any of the offences within the summary below and listed on the webpage.		
	Participation in a criminal organisation.	Yes	
	Fantcipation in a chiminal organisation.	No x If Yes please provide details at	
		2.1(b)	
	Corruption.	Yes No x	
		If Yes please provide details at 2.1(b)	
	Fraud.	Yes	
		No x If Yes please provide details at	
		2.1(b)	
	Terrorist offences or offences linked to	Yes □ No x□	
	terrorist activities	If Yes please provide details at	
		2.1(b)	
	Money laundering or terrorist financing	Yes □ No x□	
		If Yes please provide details at	
		2.1(b)	
	Child labour and other forms of trafficking	Yes	
	in human beings	No x If Yes please provide details at	
		2.1(b)	
2.1(b)	If you have answered yes to question 2.1(a), please provide further details.		
	Date of conviction, specify which of the grounds listed the conviction was for, and the reasons for conviction,		
	Identity of who has been convicted		
	If the relevant documentation is available electronically please provide the web address, issuing authority, precise reference of the documents.		
2.2	If you have answered Yes to any of the	Yes	

	points above have measures been taken to demonstrate the reliability of the organisation despite the existence of a relevant ground for exclusion? (Self- Cleaning)	No	
2.3(a)	Regulation 57(3) Has it been established, for your organisation by a judicial or administrative decision having final and binding effect in accordance with the legal provisions of any part of the United Kingdom or the legal provisions of the country in which the organisation is established (if outside the UK), that the organisation is in breach of obligations related to the payment of tax or social security contributions?	Yes No	□ x□
2.3(b)	If you have answered yes to question 2.3(a), please provide further details. Please also confirm you have paid, or have entered into a binding arrangement with a view to paying, the outstanding sum including where applicable any accrued interest and/or fines.		

Please Note: The authority reserves the right to use its discretion to exclude a potential supplier where it can demonstrate by any appropriate means that the potential supplier is in breach of its obligations relating to the non-payment of taxes or social security contributions.

Section 3	Grounds for discretionary exclusion		
	Question	Response	
3.1	 Regulation 57 (8) The detailed grounds for discretionary exclusion of an organisation are set out this webpage, which should be referred to before completing these questions. Please indicate if, within the past three years, anywhere in the world any of t following situations have applied to you, your organisation or any other pers who has powers of representation, decision or control in the organisation. 		
3.1(a)	Breach of environmental obligations?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1 (b)	Breach of social obligations?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1 (c)	Breach of labour law obligations?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(d)	Bankrupt or is the subject of insolvency or winding-up proceedings, where the organisation's assets are being administered by a liquidator or by the court, where it is in an arrangement with creditors, where its business activities are suspended or it is in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure under the laws and regulations of any State?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(e)	Guilty of grave professional misconduct?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(f)	Entered into agreements with other economic operators aimed at distorting competition?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(g)	Aware of any conflict of interest within the meaning of regulation 24 due to the participation in the procurement procedure?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(h)	Been involved in the preparation of the procurement procedure?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(i)	Shown significant or persistent deficiencies in the performance of a substantive requirement under a prior public contract, a prior contract with a contracting entity, or a prior concession contract, which led to early termination of that prior contract, damages or other comparable sanctions?	Yes No x If yes please provide details at 3.2	
3.1(j) 3.1(j) - (i)	Please answer the following statements The organisation is guilty of serious misrepresentation in supplying the information required for the verification of	Yes No x If Yes please provide details at	

	the absence of grounds for exclusion or the fulfilment of the selection criteria.	3.2
3.1(j) - (ii)	The organisation has withheld such information.	Yes No x If Yes please provide details at 3.2
3.1(j) –(iii)	The organisation is not able to submit supporting documents required under regulation 59 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.	Yes No x If Yes please provide details at 3.2
3.1(j)-(iv)	The organisation has influenced the decision-making process of the contracting authority to obtain confidential information that may confer upon the organisation undue advantages in the procurement procedure, or to negligently provided misleading information that may have a material influence on decisions concerning exclusion, selection or award.	Yes No x
3.2	If you have answered Yes to any of the	
	above, explain what measures been taken to demonstrate the reliability of the organisation despite the existence of a relevant ground for exclusion? (Self- Cleaning)	

Part 3	B: Sel	ection	Questions ⁶

Section 4	Economic and Financial Standing				
	Question	Response			
4.1	Please provide a copy of your audited accounts for the last two years. If you have provided this as part of your SQ submission, please answer 'Y'. If you are not able to provide a copy of your audited accounts, please answer 'N' and indicate which of the following you have provided to demonstrate your economic/financial standing:	Yes x No			
	(a) A statement of the turnover, Profit and Loss Account/Income Statement, Balance Sheet/Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flow for the most recent year of trading for this organisation.	Yes No			
	(b) A statement of the cash flow forecast for the current year and a bank letter outlining the current cash and credit position.	Yes No			
	(c) Alternative means of demonstrating financial status if any of the above are not available (e.g. forecast of turnover for the current year and a statement of funding provided by the owners and/or the bank, charity accruals accounts or an alternative means of demonstrating financial status).	Yes No			
4.2	Where we have specified a minimum level of economic and financial standing and/ or a minimum financial threshold within the evaluation criteria in the SQ Explanatory Document , please self-certify by answering 'Yes' or 'No' that you meet the requirements set out.	Yes X No			

Section 5	If you have indicated in the Selection Questionnaire question 1.2 that you are part of a wider group, please provide further details below:			
Name of organisation				
Relationsh completing			Supplier S	N/A

5.1	Are you able to provide parent company accounts if	Yes	
	requested to at a later stage?	No	□N/A

⁶ See Action Note 8/16 Updated Standard Selection Questionnaire

5.2	If yes, would the parent company be willing to provide	Yes 🗌 N/A
	a guarantee if necessary?	No 🗌
5.3	If no, would you be able to obtain a guarantee	Yes 🗌 N/A
	elsewhere (e.g. from a bank)?	No 🗌

Section 6	Technical and Professional Ability			
6.1	Relevant experience and contract examples			
	Please provide details of up to three contracts, in any combination from either the public or private sector; voluntary, charity or social enterprise (VCSE) that are relevant to our requirement. VCSEs may include samples of grant-funded work. Contracts for supplies or services should have been performed during the past three years. Works contracts may be from the past five years.			
	The named contact provided should be able to provide written evidence to confirm the accuracy of the information provided below.			
	Consortia bids should provide relevant examples of where the consortium has delivered similar requirements. If this is not possible (e.g. the consortium is newly formed or a Special Purpose Vehicle is to be created for this contract) then three separate examples should be provided between the principal member(s) of the proposed consortium or Special Purpose Vehicle (three examples are not required from each member).			
	Where the Supplier is a Special Purpose Vehicle, or a managing agent not intending to be the main provider of the supplies or services, the information requested should be provided in respect of the main intended provider(s) or sub-contractor(s) who will deliver the contract.			
	If you cannot provide examples see question 6.3			

	Contract 1	Contract 2	Contract 3	
Name of customer organisation	Gateshead Council	Denbighshire Council	Aberdeenshire Council	
Point of contact in the organisation	Matthew Liddle	Jo Sutton	Sam McNeil	
Position in the organisation	Senior Corporate Officer	Public Engagement Officer		
E-mail address	MatthewLiddle@gate	jo.sutton@denbighsh	sam.mcneill@aberde	
	shead.gov.uk	ire.gov.uk	enshire.gov.uk	
Description of contract	Provideonlineengagementandconsultationportalforstatutory,transportandcommunityengagements.Modulesincludeengagement,	Provide a Bilingual online engagement and consultation portal for community engagements. Modules include engagement, management,	Engagement of cared for young people	

		panel management. Panel members are informed of every engagement created by email	
Contract Start date	2011	2017.	2020
Contract completion date	Ongoing	Ongoing	Ongoing
Estimated contract value	£7,500 - £10,000 PA	£7,500 - £10,000 PA	£5000.00-£10,000 PA

6.2	Where you intend to sub-contract a proportion of the contract, please demonstrate how you have previously maintained healthy supply chains with your sub-contractor(s)
	Evidence should include, but is not limited to, details of your supply chain management tracking systems to ensure performance of the contract and including prompt payment or membership of the UK Prompt Payment Code (or equivalent schemes in other countries)
	N/A

6.3	If you cannot provide at least one example for questions 6.1, in no more than 500 words please provide an explanation for this e.g. your organisation is a new start-up or you have provided services in the past but not under a contract.
	N/A

Section 7	Modern Slavery Act 2015: Requirements under Mode	rn Slavery Act 2015
7.1	Are you a relevant commercial organisation as defined	Yes 🗌

	by section 54 ("Transparency in supply chains etc.") of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 ("the Act")?	N/A x
7.2	If you have answered yes to question 7.1 are you compliant with the annual reporting requirements contained within Section 54 of the Act 2015?	Yes Please provide the relevant url No Please provide an explanation

8. Additional Questions

Suppliers who self-certify that they meet the requirements to these additional questions will be required to provide evidence of this if they are successful at contract award stage.

Section 8	Additional Questions	
8.1	Insurance	
а.	Please self-certify whether you already have, or can commit to obtain, prior to the commencement of the contract, the levels of insurance cover indicated below: Y/N	Yes x No Y
	Employer's (Compulsory) Liability Insurance = £10 Million	
	Public Liability Insurance = £20 Million	Y
	Professional Indemnity Insurance = £10 Million	Y
	*It is a legal requirement that all companies hold Employer's (Compulsory) Liability Insurance of £5 million as a minimum. Please note this requirement is not applicable to Sole Traders.	

8.4	Payment of Supply Chains					
a.	Please confirm if you intend to use a supply chain for this	No				
	contract. If you answer "No" you do not need to complete	[NOT				
	the rest of this section.	SCORED]				
b.	Please confirm that you have systems in place to pay	Yes/No				
	those in your supply chain promptly and effectively, i.e. within your agreed contractual terms.	[PASS/FAIL]				
C.	Please confirm you have procedures for resolving	Yes/No				
	disputed invoices with those in your supply chain	[PASS/FAIL]				
	promptly and effectively.					
Requi	irement under the Public					
Contr	Contracts Regulations 2015 (Regulation 113)					
d.	Please confirm that for public sector contracts awarded	Yes/No				
	under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 you have	[PASS/FAIL]				
	systems in place to include 30-day payment terms in all of					
	your supply chain contracts and require that such terms are					
	passed down through your supply chain.					

Appendix 7: Award Criteria

Table 1: Evaluation Criteria and Weightings

	Criteria	Weighting for Bid Evaluation
А	QUALITY	70 %
В	PRICE	30 %
TOTAL		100%

	Criteria	Weighting for Bid Evaluation
A	Please confirm that your platform will give the Council the autonomy to design, create, edit, access, and publish our own consultations and engagement.	Pass/Fail
В	Please confirm your servers and data centres are UK based.	Pass/Fail
С	Please evidence that you meet the Cyber Essential Plus requirements.	Pass/Fail
D	Appendix A GDPR and Appendix B ICT Checklists	Pass/Fail Please read and complete both checklists and these will be assessed for compliance
E	Please evidence how you meet the criteria outlined in the specification (evidence may include screen captures, examples of other platforms you have created, or anything else you feel will be relevant.)	30% Pass/Fail Threshold - bidders must achieve a score of '5' or higher on the Scoring Scale 6.10 (Section 6). Companies who fail to meet the threshold will be awarded a 'fail' and will not proceed further through the evaluation and will not be awarded a contract. Companies who are awarded a score of 5 or above will be awarded a 'pass' and will then be allocated the weighting

57 of 63

TOTAL		100%
н	Scenario 4 – Demonstrate the ability to work in conjunction with other Council platforms (i.e., Council website). (7.5%) Price	30%
	Scenario 3 – Demonstrate the facilitation of community forums for end users, and how these are moderated to ensure inclusive and positive experience. (7.5%)	
	Scenario 2 – Demonstrate the ability to offer fun and informal interactions which are gamified and will incentivise end users. (7.5%)	
	Scenario 1 – Demonstrate the user journey of a place- based consultation, including creation, participation, data gathering, analysis and reporting. (7.5%)	
G	Demonstrations:	30%
F	Social Value	further through the evaluation and will not be awarded a contract. Companies who are awarded a score of 5 or above will be awarded a 'pass' and will then be allocated the weighting corresponding with their score.
E	What is your implementation and training plan for multiple teams? Please provide 2 examples of how this has been managed in the past.	10% Pass/Fail Threshold - bidders must achieve a score of '5' or higher on the Scoring Scale 6.10 (Section 6). Companies who fail to meet the threshold will be awarded a 'fail' and will not proceed
		corresponding with their score.

Appendix 8: Council Requirements and Supplier Responses

QUESTIONS BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO ANSWER

The responses to the questions in this Appendix along with the prices submitted in the pricing schedule will be used to evaluate the responses received under the criteria and weighting system. Please refer to the Award Criteria detailed in Appendix 7: Award Criteria and familiarise yourself with this before completing this Appendix.

Requirement A – Quality

Q.E1 Please evidence how you meet the criteria outlined in the specification (evidence may include screen captures, examples of other platforms you have created, or anything else you feel will be relevant.)

Maximum Score [10] Weighting [30%]

Pass/Fail Threshold - bidders must achieve a score of 5' or higher on the Scoring Scale 6.10 (Section 6). Companies who fail to meet the threshold will be awarded a 'fail' and will not proceed further through the evaluation and will not be awarded a contract. Companies who are awarded a score of 5 or above will be awarded a 'pass' and will then be allocated the weighting corresponding with their score.

Your response to this question must be limited to no more than 6 A4 sides

Requirement A – Quality

Q.E2 What is your implementation and training plan for multiple teams? Please provide 2 examples of how this has been managed in the past. Maximum Score [10] Weighting [10%]

<u>Pass/Fail Threshold</u> - bidders must achieve a score of '5' or higher on the Scoring Scale 6.10 (Section 6). Companies who fail to meet the threshold will be awarded a 'fail' and will not proceed further through the evaluation and will not be awarded a contract. Companies who are awarded a score of 5 or above will be awarded a 'pass' and will then be allocated the weighting corresponding with their score.

Your response to this question must be limited to no more than 6 A4 sides

Requirement D – Social Value

Q.F1 Social Value Commitments (Maximum Score 10) Information Only

Please outline what Social Value Commitments your organisation can commit to as part of this contract. Wherever possible please provide the following information for each commitment:

- Please identify who within your organisation, is responsible the Social Value delivery inclusive of their contact details.
- Please identify how you will deliver Social Value offered, who you will work with/partner with to facilitate delivery
- Please identify who will benefit from the Social Value offered.
- What Social Value is being delivered.
- Examples of delivering this commitment

Your response to this question must be limited to no more than 4 A4 sides.

60 of 63

Appendix 9: Financial Submissions

Please read and complete document: Pricing Schedule - Engagement Platform for LBH

Appendix 11: Climate Commitment Charter: Partnering with our Suppliers to reduce our carbon impacts

Statement

The eight local authorities in West London – Brent, Ealing, Hammersmith & Fulham, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow, Richmond upon Thames, and Wandsworth – and West London Waste (the West London Authorities) have set out our ambitions to become net zero authorities in all that we do.

We cannot deliver this alone and look to our stakeholders, especially our supply chain to help meet these targets and join us on this journey. Therefore, to support us in that aim, we need you as our suppliers and contractors to play your part in reducing both your carbon emissions in total and more specifically in the products and services you provide to us.

By committing to this Charter, we invite your organisation to join us in collectively tackling the climate emergency and to set out the actions you will take to reduce your organisation's carbon emissions.

Commitment by You, the supplier

By signing this Charter, You, the supplier, commit to supporting any of West London Authorities with whom you work on initiatives to tackle climate change. This is to reduce the greenhouse emissions related to the manufacture, delivery and operation of your products and services. It includes initiatives and technology, such as, the following that will depend on the nature of the goods and services procured: -

- Seeking alternative, lower carbon sources of power
- Improving energy efficiency of equipment
- Improving the air quality emissions from plant and vehicles
- Providing alternative transport methods
- Reducing the impact on the environment, improving it where possible, through enhanced biodiversity and the use of sustainably sourced materials
- Designing for circularity to reduce the use of virgin materials and encourage reuse and recycling to minimise waste.
- Delivering other co-benefits that arise from a transition to low carbon and sustainable lifestyles and working practices, including improved health and wellbeing outcomes
- Communicating the same sustainability intentions through *your* procurement process with *your* suppliers

All suppliers are expected to work towards the following actions and outcomes for mitigating and adapting to climate change:

- In providing, goods, works and services to ensure climate resilience, the lowest possible whole life carbon impacts, and deliver year-on-year improvements in carbon and energy intensity
- A strategy to measure, monitor and reduce your organisation's carbon footprint in line with climate science and working towards net zero
- Provide accurate data to help us disclose our greenhouse gas emissions in a clear and transparent way
- Devise and offer innovative solutions that support our journey to achieve net zero carbon
- Develop and implement a carbon reduction plan that is aligned to climate science.

As part of this we would like to gather information on your plans and implementation for carbon reduction:

 Do you, as our supplier, currently have a strategy to reduce your organisation's carbon footprint in line with climate science and working towards net zero? Response: Yes/No/In development.
 If Yes, what is the date for achieving it? Response: IN DEVELOPMENT

Our commitment

We will work closely with our supply chain to deliver lasting sustainable benefits. In practice this means we will:

- Be accountable for our own impacts on society, the economy and the environment
- Be transparent in those decisions and activities that impact the environment, society and the economy
- Behave ethically and promote ethical behaviour throughout our supply chains
- Respect, consider and respond to the interests of stakeholders impacted by its procurement activities
- Buy only what is needed and seek more sustainable alternatives
- Ensure that sustainability is integrated into all existing procurement practices to maximise sustainable outcomes
- Work towards continually improving our sustainability practices and outcomes, and encouraging organisations in our supply chains to do the same

We very much hope you will want to work with us to be ambitious for our environment for generations to come. Please pledge your support for this important collaboration to prevent the worst effect of climate change.

I/We will use reasonable endeavours when tendering for contracts and throughout the contract term to become more efficient in our ways of delivering the contract to support the above aims and initiatives, working closely with the West London Authorities and reporting back the achievements.

Signed on behalf of the Supplier [senior Manager or Director] Name: Jonathan Paul Bostock

Position: Managing Director

Date: 13th January 2023













Wandsworth



